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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) {‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

fn our opinion and fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of india (1CAl’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financiat performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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~ Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsa:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

11.

12.

13.

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, SPP & Co., who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements vide their audit report dated 08 May 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

{hartered Accountanis




- Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

14. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we repor, to the extent applicable, that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

9)

Chartered ficecuniants

iii.

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as i appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
14{h){vi} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164{2} of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 14(b) above cn reporiing under section 143(3Xb) of the Act and
paragraph 14(h){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024.;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024 ;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 52 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly tend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’} or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;




- Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

independent A
Limited (forme

uditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF Innovations Private
rly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

b.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 53 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties’}, with the understanding, whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

vi.  As state
in respe

d in note 49 to the financial statements and based on our examination the Company,
ct of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software

(Tally Prime Gold Release 4.0) for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility. However, the audit trait feature in the accounting software

used for

maintenance of accounting records was not enabled up to 09 February 2024 and the

same did not operate throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further,

during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature

being tampered with for the period where audit trail is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Nc.: 001076N/N500013

s s

Arun Tandon
Pariner
Membership No.

- B17273

UDIN: 24517273BKEXFJ7025

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2024
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and refevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets. :

The property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of right-
of-use assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee}. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’} is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i}(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

(iil)

(iv)
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during the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In
respect of goods-in-fransit, these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt and/or
dispatch inventory records.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees by

banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any depos:ts or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Accept
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) ¢
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the QOrder is not applicable.

(vii)(a} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961} which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its foans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term
loans outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix}(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a} The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x}(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with respect
to the same. Further, the amounts so raised were used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised, though surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested
in readily realisable liquid investments.

(xi} (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, n
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
period covered by our audit.

Chantered Gocountants




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
‘has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors} Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

{xi) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

{xiv)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act. However, the Company
has an internal audit system which, in our opinion, is commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
182 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

{(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of
the Company, the Group (as defined in Core [nvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvi) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 30.50 miillion and Rs. 51.08 million respectively.

{xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information
and explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to our
communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns
raised by the outgoing auditors.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material unceriainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities

Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx}
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(>xi} The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Af)\w “ oql"

Arun Tandon

Partner

Membership No.; 517273
UDIN: 24517273BKEXFJ7025

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2024

Chartered fcoountants



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly
EMPF Innovations Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence fo the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10}) of the Act, fo the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

Chartered Acocountanis
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SPR EMF
Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited) on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd}

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statementis

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial confrols with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, hased on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jace Lot

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

UDIN: 24517273BKEXFJ7025

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2024
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited

(Formedy LIMEF Inauvations Private Limited)

Balance Shees as at 31 March 2024

Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets

# Droperty, plant and equipment
b} Eapital work-ineprogress
¢} Other intangible assets
d) Rightof use assts
¢} Finangial assets
(1) C3ther financial assets
) Defeered tax assews fneg
1 her non-current assets

Current assets

4 Toventorics
) Minancal assets
i) Investments
i) Trade receivables
(i} Cash and cash equivalents
{v) Orher bank balamees other than Git) above
(v} Qther Gnancial asseis
<) Cher current assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

w) Hauity share capial
by Oxber equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
a)  Fiancial Eabilites
() Boreswings
{1} Lense linbilities
(i} Other financia] abilites
b} Qrher non-current liabilives

a [ﬁnméi:d fiahilitics
(1) Lcase liabiliges
(&) Trade payables

- total nutstanding dues of micro enterpises and small éntefprises

Noxe
No..

ENNT R

‘TOTAL ASSETS

~ total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enicTprises
(iv) Other financial liabiliies
b) Orher current liabilides

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

See aceompanying notes Lo the fnandial staternents
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Charered Aceountants
Fipm Registeation No, 001676N,/N500
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Arun Tandon ¢

Partner
Membership no, 517273
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Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 |
Rs. million Rs. miliion
457 41,446
724 -
56.50 6973
2753 30.67
155 1.38
2103 17.62
56.01 230
24104 163.56
84.21 7302
3]_(1.23 -
19.86 1205
1735 974
40432 175.00
0875 1.36
58.89 39.62
831.61 310,79
1,122.65 474.35
175.17 12005
TR315 19586
958.32 315,91
4166 58.33
717 28,67
227 295
- 0.81
7044 20.96
1,50 i
188 +4.06
20.24 7.58
1142 445
4085 50.18
93.8% 67.48
1,122.65 474,35

For and on behalf-of the Board of Dircctors
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Krishnakumar Srinivasan

Chairman

DIN: 00692717

&h Place: New Delhi

Chief Finandal Officer Director

DIN: 07060360
Place: Singapore

Place: Coimbatore

Place: IAJ::J.now
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Arun Kumnar Shakla
Whole - dme Director
DIN: 00854946
Place: New Ddhi




SPR EMF Ianovations Private Limited
(foemerly ENF Innovations Piivate Limitéd)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2024

Pa Note For the Yearended For the Year ended
D No.. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
. ) Rg, million Rs. million
T Revenue fdm operat _ ) 21 128.87 22913
Il Otherincome = - 7 ¢ ' 22 13.70 291
I Total income:(1+1TI) ) 142,57 232.04
v Expér;sgs'... '
Cost of mated 23 130.70 ' 207.11
Changes in wiventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 {1244 1.24
Employee 25 36.58 43.41
Finznce costs o 26 11,88 : 11.38
Depreeiation and amortgsation expense 7 2173 19.21
Other expenses 28 14.90 19.98
Tatal expenses 203.35 302,33
V Loss before tax (I - IV) T {60.78) (70.29)
V1 Taxexpense
1) Cureent tax - -
if) Deferred tax 7 (3.41) (17.71)
(34T a7.71)
VI Loss for the yedr (V- VI) : (57.37) - (52.58)
VI Other comprehensive income
A D) Hems that will norherechssified ta profiz orloss R
2) Remcasusements post employment defined benefic plans 0.33 E -

(i) Tncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

B (i) Trems that will berechassified to peofit or loss
=) Fair value change of cash flow hedge {0:55) -
(i) Tncome rax relaring t0'tems thas will be rechssificd to profit or loss - -

Total other cumpig:h‘énsivc income \ (0.22) : -
Total comprehensive income for the year (V1L + VIIT) (57.59) (525%)
Bamings per share (of Rs. 10/~ each) 30 . .
Basic (Rs) ) : (4.60) (5.05)
- Diluted { Rs} _ {4.60) {5.05)
Sec accompanying nows to the financiil statements 1t 55

_ In terms of dur repost aitached

)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
g ‘ V\;T{‘r\f—v\( A Sacl %

Anm Tandon Krishnalumar Stinivasan Alok Ranjan.
Partner Chazirnan D r
Membership no, 517273 DIN: 00692737 DIN: 08254398
Place: New Delhi Place: Lucknow

4 .
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Deepsk Kumar Hang Xue Yi Arun Kumar Shukla
Chicef Financial Officer Director Whole - time Director
Place: Coimbatore : DIN: 07060360 DIN: 09854946
Place: Singaporc Plrcey New Delhi

Place; New Delhi
Dazc : 13 May 2024



SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formesly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulats

A. Cash flow from operating activities

L.oss before tax

A djustments for :

Dyepreciation/amortisation

Loss/ (profit) on sale/ retitement of property, plant and equipment
Bad debts/advances written off

Provision for doubful debts /advances (net)

N et gain on sale/ fait valuation of current investment

Inaterest income

Finance costs

Orperating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

(Iricrease)/ decrease in trade receivables

{Iricrease)/ decrease in other financial assets {catrent and non-

carrent)

(Ircrease)/ decrease in other assets (current and non-current)

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payable

Increase/ (decrease) in other financial fiabilities (current and non-cuetent)
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions (current and non-cuttent)
Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash from operating operations

- Cash flow from investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds from redemption of cutrent investments

Puarchases of cutrent investments

Investment in deposit with banks

Redemption of deposit with banks

Sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress)
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceed from allotment of shares

Proceed from external commerical borrowings (ECB)
Repayment of external commerical borrowings (FCB)
Repayment of non-current borrowings

Intetest paid

Payment of leasc liahility

Inverest on lease liability

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

GV

®)

(9]

(A+B+C)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 Masch 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
(60.78) (70.29)
21.73 19.21

- 0.03
212 0.02
1.12 0.14
(2.41) -

(11.16) @79
11.88 11.31
(37.50) (42.37)
{11.19) (33.02)

(8.57) 14.49
0.43 8.1
(54.86) 27.49
28.41 (10.44)
6.44 - 3542
(10.62) (45.18)
(87.46) (45.50)
(0.80) {0.01)
(88.26) (45.51)
11.03 2.79
351.24 -
{665.06) -
(385.82) (210.00)
156,50 35.00
- 8.03
(16.49) (13.01)
(25.22) (42.10)
(573.82) (227.29)
700.00 258.92
- 40.89
(26.13) -

- {20.00)
(0.3%) (4.34)
(1.21) (1.91)
{2.64) (1.04)

669.69 272.52
7.61 (0.28)
9.74 10.02

17.35 9.74




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
{formetly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March zn24

Year ended Yearended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Components of cash and cash equivalents

 Balance with banks
- Cugtenit accounts 17.35 9.74
Total cash and cash equivalents 17.35 9.74
Note:

1. The cash flow staternent has been prepared under ¢he indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7.

In terms of our report attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants ,
Firin Registeation No. 00‘10761‘_5{}1@500913
FKrishaakunar Snmvas:m ﬁ

iﬂra‘(’\"; L‘h;la"\
DIN: 00692717 DD¥: 08254398

Asun Tandon
Place: New Delbi Place: Lacknow

Parmer
Membetship no. 517273

Cluchinansz Officer Director  Whole - time Dioecto
Place: Coiibatoze DIN: 07060360 DIN: 09854946
Place: Singapore Place: New Ddlbi

Place: Mew Delhi
Date : 13 May 2024




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly 1IMF Innovations Prvate Limited)

Statement of change in equity as at 31 Maich 2024

a) Fually paid up equity shares
{face vatue of Rs. 10/- cach)

) Arnount
No of shares Rs. million
Balamce as at 31 March 2022 99,72,955 99,73
Add: Issued during the year 20,32,316 - 20.32
Balamnce as at 31 March 2023 1,20,05,271 . 120.05
Add: Issued during the vear (refer note 45) . 55,11,811 55.12
Balamce as at 31 March 2024 1,75,17,082 175.17
b} O ther equity ‘ Rs. million
Ttems of other
Reserves and surplus compschensive Equity
ineome component of
Puartculars compound Total
Securities Retained Effective portion . ﬁnamﬂal
. A . of cash flow instrumnent
premium earnings hedse reserve
Balanceas at 31 March 2022 . . - {18.87) - - (18.87)
Profit/ (loss) for the year : - (52.58} - - - (52.58)
Share issued dusing the year - 23859 - - ) - 238,59
Equity component of compound financial instrument - - - 2872 2872
Balance as at 31 March 2023 . 73859 (7145) - 28.72 195.86
Proftat/ (oss) for the year * S - (57.37) - | - (57.37)
Shuze: ssued during the year® ’ o -l 64488 - - - 644.88
Orlier comprehensive income for the year, net offax : - 0.33 (0.55) < (0.22
Balance ds:at 31 March 2024 ' .. B8347 (128.49) (0.55) 28.72 |- 783.15
* réfer note 45 '
-~ The secupties premiom is not "free reserve™ as per the Companics Act 2013, hence not available for-distribution of dividend.
" See accompinying notes to the financial statements ito55
In terms of our report attached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLF For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chagtered Accountants ! '
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013 ' AW
/Qos« ‘E&w‘«fk Lhatomee 4.,
Arun Tandon & Krishnakumar Srinivasan Alok Bdnjan
Partner Chairman Director
Mermrybership no. 517273 DIN: 00692717 DIN: 08254398
Place: New Dethi Place: Lucknow
] @—. M %\& . ~
Deepak Kumar Hang Xue Yi Arun Kumar Shukla
Chief Financial Officer Director Whole - time Dircctor
Place: Coimbatote DIN: 07060360 DIN: 09854946
Place: Singapore Place: New Delhi

Place: New Delld
Date : 13 May 2024



SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate information

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formesly EMF Innovations Private Limited) (“the Company)
huving CIN U29309TZ2016PTC027538 is incotporated on 1.th May, 2016 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 2/209 to 2/212
Shasti Building, Rajiv Gandhi Nagar, Mylampatti Village, Neelambur, Coimbatote - 641062. The name
of the company changed to SPR EMF Innovation Private Limited w.e.f. April 30, 2024 as per MCA
approval dated April 30, 2024

"The Company’s business activity falls under the business of Research, Development, Manufactuting and
sale of Motors and Motor Controllers.

The financial statements of the Company are ﬁpproved forissuance by the Company's Board of Directors
on 13 May 2024

2. Material accounting policy information
2.1.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements ("financial statements") have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accountng Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and Compantes (Indian - Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules; 2817 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’).

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual and going
concern basis, except for the following assets and liabiliries: -

i} Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

iy -Investments in unquoted equity shares measured at fair value

iii) Defined benefit liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefir obligation.

iv) Certain financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use,

The financial statements are presented in INR “(Indian Rupees)” and all values are rounded to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directy observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Ptivate Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

mezsurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes is determined on such a basis
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable

value in Ind AS 2 or value int use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurement are categorised into level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in the entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices {unadjusted) -

in active markets for identical assets or labilities.

- Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted
prices inciuded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (.e., as prices)

or indirectly (.., detived from prices).

- Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a
valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable curtent
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

2.1.3 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and lizbilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current

classification

‘The Company classifies an asset as current asset when:

* . itexpects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;

. it holds the asset for the purpose of trading;

. it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used

to settle a Liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets ate classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as curtent when:
. it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
. it holds the liability for the purpose of trading;

. the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or




SPR EMF Inncvations Private Limited
(formerly MF Innovations Private Limnited)

Notes te the financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2024

. it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, resuit in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affeet its

classification.
All other Habilities are classified as noni-curtent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilides are classified as non-cutrent assets and labilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents. The Company’s normal operating cycle is twelve months.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial staremesnts is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
and requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent Habilities as at the date of the financial
statements and the reported income and expenses duting the year. The management believes that the

- estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could

differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
recognised in the periods in which the results are known. / materialise information, about significant areas
of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant cffect on the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements is included in the following

notes.

* Deferred tax: Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assers that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

* Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets: value of property, plant and equipment and
inrangibles at the end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage
could significantly impact the economic useful Jives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently,
the future depreciation charge could be revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future years.

* Estimation of defined benefit obligation: Employce benefit obligations are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments. These include the estimation of the appropriate discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexites involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the
employee benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Ptivate Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

* Estimation for expected credit losses of trade receivables: Trade receivables do not CArry any
interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimared
itrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management believes that there
is uncertainty of collections. Provision is recognised based on the expected credit losses, which are the
present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets. '

* Incremental rate of borrowing for lease accounting: The Company cannot readily determine the
interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabitities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over 2 similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefote reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when 10 observable rates ate available or when they need to be adjusted

‘to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates

2.3.1 Revenue recognition
Sale of products/services

The Company recognize revenue from the sale of products or services upon transter of control to

- customers. Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be
. enfitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or services to a customer as specified in the
. contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected
~-on behalf of the government). A receivable is recognized upon satisfaction of performance obligations

as per the contracts and is measuted at transaction price.
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company petforms by transferring goods or services to a customer befote the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration

that is conditional.
Contract Habilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or setvices to a customer for which the Company

has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 2 customer pays

consideration before the Company transfexs goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made ot the payment is due (whichever is carlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company petforms under the contract.

2.3.2 Other income

Interest Income

- Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it 1s probable that the economic benefits will

acctued on

flow to Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income i




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMFE Innovadons Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Miscellaneous income

- Other revenues are recognised on accrual basis, except where there are uncertaintes in realisation /
determination of income and in such casc income is recognised on realisation / certainty.

2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Propetty, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for
administrative purpose, are stated at histotic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input rax credits
availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and borrowing
cost on loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets up to the date the assets ate ready for their

intended use.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(&) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that furure economic benefits associated

with the expenditure will flow to the company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefit are expected to arise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss atising on the disposal
-.of or redrement is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the catrying amount of

the assets and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
purpose, are stated at are stated at historic cost, net of accumulated depreciation {net of input tax credirs
availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and botrowing
cost on oan taken for the acquisition of quahfymg assets upto the date the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Anitem of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss arising on the disposal of or retirement is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the cartying amount of the assets and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurted in respect of capital projects under
development and are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/

construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.




SPR EMY Innovations Private Limited
(formerly I'MF Innovations Private Limited)
‘Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

2.4.4 Intangible assets under development

All developrment costs incurred in respect of new model development projects are capitalised under
intangible assets under development. Once the new model is commercialised, the cost accumulated in
intangible assets under development are classified as intangible assets corresponding to the new model

development project.
2.4.5 Leases
Lessee Accounting

1) Lease liability is inidally recognised at the commencement of lease and measured at an amount equal
to the present value of minimum lease payments during the lease term that are not et paid.

i) Right of use asset is recognised at the commencement of lease and measured at cost, consisting of
initial measurement of lease lizbility plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the restoration costs and any
initial direct costs incutred by the lessec. Right-of-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets and impairment loss.

iif) The lease liability is measured in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate method.

1iv} Recognition and measurement cxemption is availed for low-value assets and short term leases. Assets
of-low value include IT equipment or office furniture. No monetaty threshold has been defined for
low-value assets. Short-term leases are defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.5 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its

estimated residual value.

The Company is following written down value method in case of Computers, Furniture & fixtures and
office equipment and straight linc method in respect of other assets.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided as per the useful life
prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the certain categoties of assets,
in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the
. natute, the estimated usage, operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes and maintenance practices etc. Following are the estimated useful lives of various

category of assets used:

Plant and equipment

- General - eight yeats
- Electric equipment - five years

- Leasehold improvement - five years




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
{formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

- Plant and equipment — welding - fifteen years
- Furniture and fixtares - ten years

- Computer _ - three years
- Office equiptnents - five years

- Motor vehicles - cight years

‘All intangible assets ate amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful life as under.

n

Intellectual property - ten years
Computer software - three years
Right of use Assets under leases - over the lease petiod

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold/discarded during the year is charged on pro-rata basis.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting petiod, and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.

-2.6 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instruments.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets ate accounted for at trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost

1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows; and

i1} The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through othet comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair

value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by coliecting contractual

cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- 1) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

- Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. The
average credit period is 56 days.

Investments
. Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liahilities

- Al financiai lizbilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through profit ot loss
{FVTIPL). For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
cartying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note no 38.
2.7. Derivative financisl instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instraments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts and cross curtency

interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. ‘The resulting gain or
loss 1s recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as 2 hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit
and loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limijted)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(1) Financial assets or financial Liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss.

This category has derivative financial assets or Nabilities which are not designated as hedges. Although
the Company believcs that these detivatives constinte hedges from an economic perspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any detivative that is either
not desighated a hedge, ot is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is caregorized as a financial
asset ot financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss. ' '

Detivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs
are recognized in net profir in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair value through the statement of profir and loss and the
tesuldng exchange gains or losses are incladed in the statement of profit and loss, Assets/liabilities in this
category are presented as current assets/current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected
to be realized within 12 months after the Balance sheet date.

() Hedge accounting

The Company designates the derivarives as hedge of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash flows

of highly probable forecast transaction,

- The Company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between
-hedging instrument and hedge items. The Company documents its risk management objective and

strategy for undertaking vatious hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship.

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the Company generally designates
telated forward contract related as the hedging instruments.

The effective porton of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges, is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash
flow hedge resetve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffecrive portion is tecognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity relating to (effective poition as described above) are reclassified to the statement
of profit and loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same Tine as the
recognised hedged item. For the same, Company marches critical terms of hedge item and hedge
instruments.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifics for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other.
comptehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction and cross currency interest rate swap transaction is ultimately recognised in the
statemnent of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction and cross currency interest rate swap transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the pain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss. -

Fair value is determined in the manner desctibed in note no 38.
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2.8 Inventories

Inventories are vatued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product

to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

i) Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Raw materials and
other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the
finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

i) Work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing

overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

1ii) Finished goods: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing

overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

"Net realisable value is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9 Foreign currency transactions and translations

- Transacdons in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on or

closely approximating to the date of transaction.

At the end of each reporting petiod, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the tates prevailing at that date. Non-motietaty items carried at fair value that are denominared in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the statement of profir and loss in the petiod
in which they arise except exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain

foreign cutrency risks.

For foreign currency denominared financial assets measured at amortised cost or FV TPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss except for those which are designated as hedging
instruments in a hedging relationship.

2.10 Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

Payments to defined contribution retitement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Contribution towards Provident Fund is paid as per the statutoty provisions. These benefits are charged
to the statement of profit and loss of the year when they become due. For defined post-employment
employee benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
methed, with actuatial valmations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
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Re-measurement, comptising actuariaf gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the teturn on plan
assets - (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in. other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in rerained earnings and is not
reclassified to the statement of profic and loss. Past service cost is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined-benefit hability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised

as follows:

1) Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments

and settiements);

1) Net interest expense or income; and

1i) Re-measurement.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in the period
- the related service is tendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange

for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the reiated service.

- Liabilities for compensated absence that are not expected to be setded wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees rendered the related service, are measured at the present value
of expected future payment to be made in respect of service provided by employees up to the end of
reporting period using the projected unit credit method, The benefir are discounted using the market
yields at the end of reporting petiod. Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and change
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.11 Research and development

Revenue expenditure on research and development, inclusive of dies for new model development, is
charged as expense in the year in which incurred, Capital expendirure is included in Property, plant,
equipment and intangible assets.

2.12 Taxes on income

Income tax expense comptises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for cutrent
and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to of recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheer
date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are tecognized for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their cartying amounts in the financial stztements.
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Defetred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent thar it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measv.red using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled, The effect of changes
in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period
that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized
to the extent that it is probable that furure taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be urilized.

The Company offsets current tax assets and cutrent rax liabilides, where it has a legally enforceable dghr
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.13 Borrowing costs

Botrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those ‘assets, until such fdme the assers are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale,

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
-~on qualifying assets is deducted from the botrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to the owners of the Company
by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, share split and
any new equity issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eatnings per share, profit or loss attriburable to the ownets of the
Company and the weighted average number of shates outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.15 Impairment of assets

The carrying values of Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
reviewed at each Balance sheet .date for impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of
these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling
price and their value in use. Value in use is artived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present
velue based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss
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recognised for an asset in eatlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased such reversal

of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recugnising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component

is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit Ioss.
2.16 Provisions -

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

- The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
g p g

present obligation. at-the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertaindes

sutrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision ate expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.17 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liabiliry is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an ocutflow of rescurces.

When thete is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood on outflow
of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

2.18 Segment reporting

An operating segment is 2 component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it

- may eatn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Company is primarily engaged in the design and manufacturing of electric vehicle motoss and motor
controllers. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions about resources o be allocated to the segments
and assess their performance. CODM believes that these are governed by same set of risk and returns
hence CODM reviews as one balance sheet component.

2.19 Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective

As on the date of these financial statements, Ministry of Cotporate Affaits (MCA’) has not issued any
standards /amendments to accounting standards which are effective from 1 April 2024,
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Rs. million
. Leasehold Plantand  Purniture and Office Electrical .
Particulass improvement  equipment fixtures Computer equipments equipmernts Motor vehicles Total

As at 31 March 2023
Gross cattying amount
Opening gross catrying amount 11.71 2771 148 3.45 2.79 1.80 0.17 49.11
Addidons 7.83 317 0.41 0.83 0.27 0.51 - 13.02
Disposals - - - - - - 0.09) (0.09)
Closing gross cattying amount as at 31 March 2023 19.54 30.88 1.89 4.28 3,06 2.31 0.08 62.04
Accumulated depreciation )
As on 31 March 2023
Opening accumlulated depreciation 3.21 4.36 0.06 1.07 0.51 0.58 0.03 9,82
Depreciation charged during the year 317 3.44 0.47 2.08 1.20 0.41 0.02 10.79
Disposals - - - - - - (0.03) (0.03)
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 6.38 7.80 0.53 3.15 1.71 0.99 0.02 20.58
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 13.16 23.08 1.36 1.13 1,35 1.32 0.06 41.46
As at 31 March 2024
Gross catrying amount
Opening gross catrying amount 19.54 30.88 1.89 4.28 3.06 2.3 0.08 62.04
Additions - 175 0.09 0.15 ‘ 0.31 0.26 0.69 9.25
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 19.54 38.63 1,98 4.43 . 3.37 2,57 0.77 71.29
Accumulated depreciation ‘
As at 31 Match 2024
Opening accumlulated depreciation 638 7.80 0.53 3.15 1.71 .99 0.02 20,58
Depreciation chasged during the year 371 4.11 0.37 0.72 0.68 0.46 0.09 10.14
Disposals - - - - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 10.09  Hsl 0.90 3.87 2.39 1.45 0.11 30,72
Net cartying amount as at 31 March 2024 9.45 26.72 1.08 0.56 ‘ 2.98 1.12 0.66 40.57

Note:

The Company has not revalued any propetty, plant and equip

ment during the vear,
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4. Capital-work-in progress

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
. Ras, million Rs, million
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions duting the year 10.30 -
Capitalised / adjusted during the year 3.06 -
Balance at the end of the year 7.24 -
Note: The capital-wotk-in-progress mainly consists of property, plant and equipment under construction / installations and which are not ready for use at year end.
Rs. million
As on 31 March 2024
Amount in Capital-work-in-progress for a petiod of
Particulars
Less than 1 Mote than 3 Total
2-3 yeats 2-3 years
year yeafs

Projects in progress ** 7.24 - - - 7.24

Note:
** The projects in progtess as on 31 Mareh 2024, will be completed within 1 year.
There are no such projects under capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its ordginal plan as of 31 March 2024,

(This space has boen intentionally left blant)
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5. Other intangible assets

{i) Thc Company has not revalued tight-of-use assets during the year,

Rs. million
Other intangible assets
Particulars Computer Intellectual Total
software property

As at 31 March 26023
Gross cattying amount
Opening gross carrying amount - - -
Additions - 76.40 76.40
Disposals - - -
Closing gross canying amount a5 at 31 March 2023 - 76.40 76.40
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumlulated depreciation . - - -
Depreciation / amortisation charged during the year - 6.67 6.67
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 - 6.67 6.67
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 - 69.73 69.73
As at 31 March 2024
Giross catrying amount
Opening pross catrying amount - 76.40 76.40
Additons 3.01 22.21 2522
Disposals - - -
Closing gross cartying amount as at 31 March 2024 3.0 98.61 101.62
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumbulated deprediation - 6.67 6.67
Depreciation / amortisation charged during the year 0.81 7.64 8.45
Disposals - . -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 0.81 14,31 15.12
Wet catrying amount as at 31 March 2024 2.20 84.30 86.50

() The Company has not revalued other intangible asscis during the year.

6. Right of use assets

Right of use assets
Particulars (refer note 34)
Land Buildings Total

As at 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross catrying amount - - -

Additions 3.68 28.75 3243

Closing gross cattying amount as at 31 March 2023 3.68 28.75 3243

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated depreciation - - -

Depreciation / amortisation charged during the year 0.78 0.98 1.76

Disposals - - -

Closing accamulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 0.78 .98 1.76

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 2.90 27.77 30.67

As at 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross cattying amount 3.68 28.75 32.43

Addidons - - R

" Disposals - - -

Closing pgross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 3.68 28.75 3243

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accurmulated deprediation 0.78 0.98 1.76

Depreciation / amortisation charged during the year 0.78 2.36 3.14

Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 1.56 334 4.90

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 2.12 25.41 27.53
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7. a) Deferred tax assets (net)

Deeferred tax assets
Business loss and wnahsorbed depreciation

MNet deferred tax agsets *

(b} Changes in deferred tax assets (net)

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets

Income tax expenses calculated at current tax rate
Adjustment tecognised in current yeat in relation to deferred
tax of prior year

Interest on MSMED parties

Effect of tax on unabsored depreciation (pior yeats)

Net deferted tax assets /( liability)

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets
Income tax expenses calculated 2t current tax rate
Unabsorhed depreciation of current yeat
Unabsorbed depreciation of previous year

Items leading to deferred tax Liabilities
Impact of difference between tax depreciation and

depreciation/ amortsation charged in books

Net deferred tax assets / (liability)

*Oin account of lack of virtuat certainity of future taxable income, deferred tax assets have not been recognised.

As at As ar
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
21.03 17.62
21.03 17.62
21.03 17.62
Ag at Recognised in As at
31 March 2023 [e18i] Profit / Loss 31 March 2024
15.79 - s 19.20
1.80 - - 1.80
0.03 - - 0.03
17.62 - 34 21.03
As at Recognised in As at
31 March 2022 ocCI Profit / Loss 31 March 2023
- - 15.79 15.79
- 1.80 1.80
- - 0.03 0.03
(0.09 - 0.09 -
(0.09) - 17.71 17.62

{This space has been intemtionally left biank)
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8. Investments

Current investments (Unquoted)

Carried at fair value through Statement of Profit and loss

Investrnent in mutyal fond (Liquid fund) units of face value of Rs 1006 cach
- 30,274 units (Previous year: Nif) UTT Lignid Fund - Direct plan - Growth

- 25,978 units (Previous year: Nil) Sundaram Liquid Fuad - Direet plan - LFZG

- 28,304 units (Previous year: Nil) HSBC Liquid Fund - Direct growth

- 18,656 units (Previous year: Nil) SBI Liquid Fund - Direct growth

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments
Agpregate maket vafue of unquoted investments
Aggregate value of impaitment in value of investments

9. Other financial assets
(At amortised cost excluding derivative instrumenit)

on-current:
Secutity deposits
Less: provision for doubtfu) security deposits*

*Rounded off to zero

Carrent:
Security deposits

Interest accrued on deposits

10. Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Non-current:
i) Capital advances
Less: Provision for doubtful advances
ii) Other assets
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
iif) Gratuity recoverable {refer note 37
iv) Advance income tax
Catrent:
£) Advances other than capital advances recoverable in cash o in kind of for value to be teceived
Unsecuted, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtfal
Less: Provision for doubtful sdvances

i) Balance with government authorities
iif) Prepaid expenses

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. millien
119.82 -
55.39 -
70.51 -
70.51 -
316.23 -
314.11 -
316.23 -
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
1.56 1.38
(0.00) -
1.56 1.38
- 0.74
0.75 0.62
0.75 1.36
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
55.39 0.20
{0.18) -
55.21 0.20
-~ 2.11
- 211
0.21 -
1.19 0.39
56.61 2,70
B.19 16.06
0.18 -
8.37 16.06
(0.18) -
8.19 16.06
23.25
0.31

39.62




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
{formedy EMF Thnovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

11. Inventories
{vaued at Jower of cost or net realisable value)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Raw materizl and components 61.69 62.94
(includes in transit Rs. 11.81 milion {previous yean Wiy
Wotk-in-progress 19.45 .20
Finished goods 12.07 2.88
84.21 75.02
12. Trade receivables
As at As ar
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs, million Rs, million

Trade receivables considered goods - Secured -
Trade receivables considered goods - Unsecared * 19.86 1205
Receivable which have significant increase in credit sk - -

Credit impaired 0.90 0.4
20.76 219
T.ess: Allowznce for expected credit loss on receivable credit impaired 0.90) 0.14)
: 19,86 12.05
: T™otes:

i *Thete is no trade receivable which have significant increasc in ctedit risk,

it} *Trade receivable of Rs. 10,28 million (previous year: Rs. 1.52 milfion) is due from related party {refer note 32).

iif) *No trade ot other seceivable are due from directors ot othet officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person ot debts due by firms or pivate companics tespectively in which
any director is a partner or 2 director or 2 member.

T'rade receivable ageing 25 on 3 March 2024 is as under:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulara Unbilled Dues Not Due Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 23 More than Total
‘months - I year years years 3 years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good - - 18.53 G.11 1.22 - - 19.86

(if) Undisputed trade receivables ~which have significant increase
i credit risk - - - - .
(iif) Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - 0.02 0.01 Q.87 - - 0.90
(iw) Disputed trade receivibles—considered good - - - - - -
(v} Pisputed trade receivables -~ which have significant increase in
credit risk - - - - -
(vi) Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - . - - - R -

Total - - 18.55 0.12 2.09 - - 20.76

Trade receivable ageing as on 31 March 2023 is as under:

Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Dues Not Due Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 23 Mote than
months -1year years yeats 3 years
() Undisputed trade receivables — considered good - 2.14 741 2.5¢ - - - 12.05
() Undisputed trade receivables -which have significant increase
in credit risk - - - - R _ _ .
(iify Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - . 0.14 - N 014
(iv) Disputed trade receivables—considered pood - - . - - - R -
{v) Disputed trade receivables — which have significant inctease in _
credit risk
{vi) Disputed trade reccivables — credit impaired - - R - - B - -
- .14 .41 2.50 0.14 - - 12.19

13. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
i) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- current accounts 17.35 9.74
17.35 9974

ii) Other bank balances
- Deposir.s with banks , with original maturity mare 40432 175.00
than 3 months but less than 12 months” i

404.32 175.00
421,67 184.74

™ "The Company has been sanctioned a working capital loan by Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited against collateral of bank deposit amounting Rs. 53.5 million.
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14. Equity shate capital
As at As at
31 March 2024 3t March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Anthorised shares capital
i?'g:_ﬂi%ﬂg a"'(:]1:;1:t:'wous yeat 35,000,000} equity shates 000 35000
350.00 350.00

a. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share
capital
lz}s{‘i:?'i{fiﬁmwous year 12,005,271) equity shares 17547 12005

175,17 120.05

b. Terms /rights attached to equi ares

The Company has only one class of equity shares haviag a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each halder of equity share is entitled to dividerd and onie vote per share. In the event
of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are cligible to teceive the remaining asscts of the Company after distributon of alf preferential amount, in proportion to their

shareholding,

¢, Reconciliation of numbers of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year

As at Ag at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Rs. million

Opening balance 1,20,05,271 120.05 99,72,955 99.73

Issued during the year (refer note 45) 55,11,811 55.12 20,32,316 26.32

Closing balance 1,75,17,082 175.17 1,20,05,271 120.05

d. Details of equity sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at As at
31 Match 2024 31 Match 2023
No, of shares % sharcholding No. of shares % sharcholding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
SPR Fngenious Limited 1,16,34,499 66.42% 61,22,688 51.00%

EMFI International Pre Led 58,82,583 33.58% 58,832,583 49.00%

e. Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at Agar
31 March 2024 31 Match 2023
Name of promoter No. of shares % sharcholding % Change No. of shares % shareholding % Change
: during the year N during the year

SPR Engenious Limited 1,16,34,499 66.42 90,02 61,22,688 51.00 51.00
EMFT Internadonal Pte Led 58,682,583 33.58 - 58,82,583 49.G0 (49.35)

£. The Company has not issued any boaus shates nor has there been any buy-back of shares nor any shates are issued for consideration other than cash in the current year and

preceding five years,

(This space bas been intentionally Rft blank)
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15. Othet equity
Trems of other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive Equity
income component of
Pardculars . compound Totat

Securities Retained Effective portion o financiat

premium casnings Sub Total cash :::::v ]:edge instrment
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - (i8.87) (18.87) - - (18.87)
Loss for the year - (52.58) {52.58) - - (52.58)
Allotment of equity shares 238.59 - 238.59 - - 238.59
Equity component of compound fnancial instrumen - - - - 28.72 28.72
Balance as at 31 March 2023 238.59 (71.45) 167,14 - 28.72 195.86
Loss for the year - (57.37) (57.37 - - (51.37)
Tssuance of equity shares 644.88 - 644.88 - - 644,88
Qther comprehensive income for the yeat, net of tax - 0.33 0.33 0.55) - (6.22)
Balance as at 31 March 31 2024 883.47 (128.49) 754.98 {0.55) 28.72 783.15

Nature and purpose of resetves:

Retained earmnings
Retained earnings refer to the net profit/(loss) retained by the Comparny for its core business activitics. Also includes re-measurement gains or loss on defined benefit plans.

Cash flow hedge reserve
Cumulative chaages in the fair value of financial instraments designated as effective hedge are recognised in this reserve through OCT (net of taxes). Amounts recognised in the
hedging reserve ate reclassified to the statement of profit aad loss when the underlying transaction occurs.

Secnrities premium
Securities premium comprises of the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is udlised in accordance with the specific provision of the Companies Act, 2013,

Equity compoenent of compound financial instrument

The company has accounted equity compoment basis on difference between fair value of the insteument as 2 whole and fair value of the liability component as per Ind AS 32,
This cquity is the residuary interest in assecs afeer deducting liabilitles and initial cartying amount of compound instrument. No gain or loss tecognised on initial recognition of
the component.

(This space bas been intentionally It blank,)
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

16. Borrowings As at
{At amortised cost) 31 March 2024
Rs. million
Unsecured
Unsecured loans from related parties (refer note k) ae 41.00
' 41.00

~ ‘The Company borrowed extemal commercial borrowings BCB of SGI 14,13,000 bearing zero interest rate from EMF International Pre. Lid, Out of this, ECB of SGD

4,20,700 has been paid during the year. Consequently, ECB of SGD 9,92,300 is outstanding at the end of the year.
Repayment schedule for the ECB loan is given as under:

As at
31 March 2023

Rs. million

38.53

58.53

Date Amount in SGD
9 March 2029 3,79,300
26 July 2029 6,13,000
Total 9,92,300
Amount Qutstandin Repayment period from origination Instalments inif:;m;j‘;gfn
g (years) outstanding P
(%)
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mazch 2024 31 March 2024
{Rs. million) No.
41.00 8 2 Nil

Disclosute under Para 444 as set out in IND AS on cash flow statements under Companies { Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended)

Changes in labilities arising from financing activities:

is given below:

Rs, million
) Outstanding balance | Net proceeds/ Non-cash Outstanding balance
Particulars as on (repayment} of changes as on 31 March 2024
1 April 2023 borrowing
Long term b?rtowmg (including current matutitics of long 58.53 2613 8.60 41.00
term borrowings)
Rs. miltion
_ Outstanding balance | Net proceeds/ Non-cash Outstanding balance
Particulars as on (repayment) of changes as ot 31 March 2023
1 April 2022 borrowing
Long tetm bfn:tomng (including current maturitics of long 37.64 20.89 _ 58,53
term borrowings)
17. Other liabilities
As at As at
31 Maxrch 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Non current;
Others* (refer note 37) - 0.81
. 6.81
Current:
Revenue received in advance 39.71 48,98
Statutory dues 0.62 0.70
Other payable 0.52 0.50
40.85 50.18

*Gratuity {net of gratuity asset)




SPR EMTF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Lirnited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

18. Trade payables

(At amortised cost) As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Rs. million Bs. milfion
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 10.88 4.06
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 2634 7.58
and snuall enterprises
40.12 1i.64
‘Frade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024 is a¢ under: Rs. million
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul Unbilled d t db
A motied dues Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  Mote than 3 years  ‘Total
() Micro enterptises and small - 10.71 017 - - - 10.88
enterprises i
{iiy Disputed dues - Micro - - - - - - -
enterprises and small enterprises
{iif) Others - 29,24 - - - - 29,24
#")Disputed  ducs - Others - - - - - - -
- 39.95 0.17 - - - 40.12
Trade Payables ageing schedule 2s on 31 March 2023 is as under: Rs. million
OCutstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Particul. Unbilled d Not d
e Thitec dues ordne Less than 1 year 1-2 yeats 2-3years  Mote than 3ycars  Total

(@) Micro enterprises and small - 1.88 218 - - - 4.06
enterprises

(i) Disputed dues — Micro - - - - - _

enterprises and small enterprises

(iif) Others - 0.52 7.06 - - 7.58

(v)Disputed  dues - Others - - - - - B _
- 2.40 9.24 - - - 1164

Trade payable includes nil (brevious year: Rs. 3.85 million ) due to related parties (refer note 33)

19. Other financial liabilities (Non-current)

(At amortised cost)

Employee related payable

25, Other financial fiabilities (Current)
(At amoziised cost)

Current;
Capital creditors *

Employee related payable
Derivatives instruments (refer note 41)

As at

3% March 2024

Rs. million
2.27
2.27

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million

5.27
5.60
0.55
11.42

As at

31 March 2023

Rs. million
2,95
2.95

As at
31 March 2023
Rs. million

0.70
3.758

4.45

——
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
{formerly EMF Innovations Privare Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

21. Revenue from operations

Sale of products
-Domestic sales
-Expoit sales

Other operating revenues

- sale of scrap
- others

Contract balances

Revenue received in advance (refer note 17y *

Contract Habilities - Revenue received in advance

Opening balance of contract liabilities

Less: Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities

Add: Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year (net of refunds)
Closing balance of contract Habilities

22, Other income

Trterest income
- Bank deposits*
Othet non-operating income
-Net gain on sale/ fair valuation of current investments
-Miscellaneous income

* undetlying assets on which income is recognised are carried at amostised cose
~ undetlying assets on which income is recognised at fait value through profit and loss

23. Cost of material consumed

Cost of raw material and components consumed
Cost of packing material consumed

24, (Inctease) / decrease in inventories of finished go0ds and work-in-progress

Inventories at the end of the year
Woztk-in-progress
Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

{Increase) / decrease in inventories of i kc-in-progress

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. Million Rs. Miltion
126.64 22310
- 057
202 -
0.21 546
128.87 229.13
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
39.71 4898
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
4898 94.62
{48.98) (94.62)
39.71 48.98
3471 48.98
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
11.14 279
241 0.05
13 0.07
13.70 2.91
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rg. million
130.07 205.52
0.63 1.59
130.70 207.11
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs, million Rs. millien
1045 7.20
12,07 2.88
22.52 10.08
7.20 298
2.88 8.34
L 10.08 11,32
ol (12.44) 1,24




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited

(formetly EMF Innovations Private Lirnited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

25. Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

26. Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on lease liablilifies

Other borrowing costs

27. Depreciation and amortisation expense

- Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
- Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 6)
- Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5)

28. Other expenses

Freight outward

Power and fuel

Professional fees

Auditors' remuneration (tefer note 29)
Rent

Repaits to buildings

Repaits to machinery

Selling and distribution expenses

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Bad debts writren off

Provision for doubtful debrs
Provision for doubtful advances
Miscellaneous expenses

Business promotion

Directors sitting fees

Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net)

Year ended Yeat ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
30.01 36.12
345 3.37
312 3.92
36.58 43.41
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs, million Rs. million
8.87 4.34
2.64 1.10
0.37 594
11,88 11.38
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
10.14 10.78
3.14 1.76
8.45 6.67
21.73 19.21
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
1.08 1.43
1.37 1.19
240 5.02
0.68 0.19
- 144
0.21 0.38
0.26 0.23
0.10 0.64
- 0.03
212 0.02
0.76 0.14
0.36 -
512 6.36
0.29 -
0.15 -
- 2.91
14.90 19.98




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
{formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

29. Auditots' remuneration
(exciuding goeds and service tax, as applicable)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
As auditor:
- Audit fee 0.35 0.10
- Limited review 0.30 -
- Other services - .09
- Reimbutsement of expenses 0.03 -
0.68 0.19
30. Earnings per share (EPS)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs miflion) (57.37) (52.58)
Weighted average number of equity shares (million) 1247 10.42
Earnings per share
~*Basic (Rs) (4.60) (5.05)
-“*Diluted [Rs) {4.60) (5.05)

* During the current yeat, the Company has issued 55,11,811 equity
Limited on 1 March 2024 (refer note 45).

31 Capital and other commitments

Year ended
Particulars 31 Match 2024
Rs. million
1) Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account (net of
advances) and not provided for 253.72

i) Contingent lizbilities as at 31 Mazch 2094 and 31 March 2023 is Nil.

1if) Total outstanding export obligation of Rs. 5.22 million to be fulfilled under
tmport of some machines/ capital equipments. Average export obligation of Rs. 0

shates of Rs. 10 each against the righe issue to SPR Engenious

Year ended

31 March 2023

Rs. million

the Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme against
.87 million every year (ptevious yeat - Rs. (.87 million).




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

33. Related Patty Disclosure
As per Indian Accounting Standard — 24 the Company’s related parties and transactions with them are disclosed below :

A List of related parties

Ultiate Holding Company Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited

Holding Company SPR Engenious Limited

Fellow subsidiary compan ’ SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (Formetly Takahata Ptecision India
a1y company Private Limited)

Key management personel (KMP) Mr. Krishnakumar Seinivasan, Chairman

Mr. Hang Xue Yi, Director

Mr. Arun Kumar Shulkla, Director (apto 31 January 2024)

Mr. Arun Kumar Shulda, Whole Time Disector (w.e.f. 1 February 2024)

Mr. Prem Rathi, Director {upto 18 September 2023)

Mz. Sudip Nandy, Director (w.e.f. 6 November 2023)

Mt. Alok Ranjan, Director {w.c.f. 6 November 2023)

Mis. Ferida Chopra, Director (w.c.f. 6 November 2023)

Mr. Krishna M, Dircctor (w.e.f. 14 September 2023)

Mts. T.P. Sivasankati, Managing Director (upto 23 September 2023)

Mts. T.P. Sivasankati, Director (from 24 September 2023 to 6 November 2023)

Close members of the family of key management personnel
Mr. Arun Kumar Shukla, Whole Time Director (w.e.f. 1 February 2024) Mis. Vartika Shukla
Mts. T.P. Sivasankari, Managing Director (upto 23 September 2023)

Entity over which, key management personnel EMFI International Pte Ltd
and theit close members of the fanily has AR4 Tech Private Limited
significant influence or control Sodion Energy Private Limited

Radax Motors Private Limited

Haithitat Hair Treatment Private Limited
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SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

34, Leases

“The changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:

Rs, million
Particulars Right of use asset
Land Buildings
Balance as of 01 April 2022 - -
Addition 3.68 28,75
Amortisation of rght of use asset {0.78) (0.98)
Balance as of 31 March 2023 290 27.77
Balance as of 1 April 2023 290 2777
Additions - R
Amortisation of tight of use asset 0.78) (2.36)
Balance as of 31 March 2024 212 2541
The brezk-up of curreat and non-current lease Habilitics as of 31 Match 2024 is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs, million Rs. million
Current 1.50 1.21
Non-current 27.17 28.67
‘Fotal 28.67 29.88
The movement in lease liabilites duting the year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:
) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Balance at the beginning 29.88 -
Additions - 30.68
Finance cost accrued duting the petiod 2.64 110
Payment of lease Labilities (3.85) (1.90)
Balance at the end 28.67 29.88
The details of contractual maturities of lease Babilities on an undiscounted basis:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. miilion
Less than one year 4.02 3.85
One to five years 15.84 16.05
Motc than five years 25.74 32.89
Total 45.60 52.79
The following are the amoumts recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. miflion
Depreciation expense of right of usc assets 314 1.76
Interest expenses on lease fiabilities 2.64 1.10
Expense relating to other than non-current leases (included in other expenses) # - 144
Total amount recognised in Statement of ProSt or Loss 5.78 4.30

# Lease payments not recognised as 2 fiability

The Company has elected not to recagnise a lease liability for current leases {leases with an expecied term of 12 months ot less). Payments made under such
leases ate expensed on a straight-line basis. The Company does not have any liability to make vatiable Jease payments for the tight-to-use the undetlying asser

recognised in the financials.

The table below describes the nature of the Company’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheer:

No. of right R::m:ge of Average remaining
of assets remaining term
. lease term
leased (in years)

Buildings

- 31 March 2024 1 10.75 1075

- 31 March 2023 1 11.75 11.75

Land

- 31 March 2024 275 275

- 31 March 2023 1 375 375

The Company does oot facg

‘éq“t\hty f@ef

NE




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
{formetly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

35. Segment repotiing

The Company is engaged in a single segment ie. the business of "zutomotive compaonents” from where it is earning its revenue and incurring espense, The
operating results are regularly reviewed and performance is assessed by its Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). All the company's resources are dedicated
to this single segment and all the discrete Snancial information is available for this segment,

Geographical information in respect of sale of products from customers is given below

Year ended Year ended
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. milion Rs. million
Diemestic sale 126.64 22310
Export sale - 0.57
126.64 223.67

Note:

i) There ate no material non current asset domiciled outise India.

i) Revenue from four custorners amonating to Rs. 69.35 million (previous year Rs. 97.25 million from one enstomer) represents 10% ot more of the Companys'
tevenue from operations.

36. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act

The status of vendors under Micro, Small and Medium Enterptises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is based on certificate submitted by vendors about their
coverage under the provisions of MSMED Act, 2006,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Rs. million Rs. million
Amount remaining unpaid to suppliets under MSMED as at the end
of year
- Principal amount 10.87 3.63
- Interest due thereon 0.01 0.43
Amount of payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day
during the year
- Principal amount 1248 37.98
~ Interest actually paid under scction 16 of MSMED - -
Amount of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which has been 0.67 043
paid but beyond the appeinted day during the year) but without adding
interest under MSMED
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
- Interest acerved during the year 0.07 0.43
- Intetest remaining unpaid as at the end of die year 0.01 0.43

0.07 0.43

TInterest remaining disallowable as deductible expenditute under the Income-
tax Act, 1941

{This space bas been inientionally left biank)




SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Prvate Litnited)
Notes to the financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2024
37. Employee benefits
The Company has classified the various employee benefits as under =

i) Defined contribution plans

The Company has recognised the following amount in the statement of profit and Ioss:-

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Employers' contribution to provident fand 207 1.82
Employers' contribution to state insurance fund 0.38 0.33 -
2.45 2.15

i) Defined benefit plans - gratuity

1n accordance with Ind AS 19, actuarial valuation of defined benefit plans was dore for gratuity and details of the same are given below :

Particulats Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Curtrent service cost 0.94 0.61
Past service cost - 0.61
Net Insterest cost on defined benefic/ lability - -
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Less 0.94 1.22
Actual contribution and benefit payments for the year
Actual benefit payments - -
Actual contributions ) 1.69 0.41
1.69 0.41
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obfigation 1.0 122
Fair value of plan assets 21 041
Funded status [Surplus / (Defici)] 0.21 (0.51)
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 0.21 (0.81)
Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year
Present vaiue of defined benefit obligations at beginning of the year 1.22 -
Current setvice cost 0.94 0.61
Tnterest cost G.09 0.61
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (Actuarial (gains)/losses)
- Changes in Demographic assumptions 0.06 -
- Changes in Financial assumptions {0.15) -
- Expenence Variance (0.26) -
Benefits paid - -
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 1.90 1.22
Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the year 0.41 -
Investment income 0.03 -
Employet's contdbutions 1.69 0.41
Retutn on Plan assets excluding amount recognised in net interest expenses (0.02) -
Benefits paid - -
Plan assets at the end of the year 21 0.41
Expected retumn on plan assets - -
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains)/ losses
- Changes in demographic assumptions 0.06 -
- Changes in financial assumptions 015 -
- Experience variance (0.26) -
(Return) /foss on plan asscts, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense 0.02 -

(0.33) -




SPR. EMF Innovations Private Limited
(formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
Notes 1o the financial stateitents fot the vear ended 31 March 2024

Year ended Year ended

Actuarial assumptions for Gratuicy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discount rate 115% 71.35%
Expected fetym on plan assets 080% 0.00%
Salary cscalation 9.00% 10.00%
Autdtion 16%, pa. 11 %, pa.
Morgaliry table used 100% of TALM 100% of IALM
2012-14 201214
Scnsitivity Analysis for significant aceuarial assumptions Year ended 31 March 2024 Year cnded 31 March 2023
Impact on Liabilicy Impact an Liabiliey
Particulars Increase Decrease Increzse Dectease
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. milion Rs. milion
Discount Rate +100 basis points - 212 - 135
-100 basis paints 172 040 110 -
Salary growth rate +100 basis points 211 - 1.35 -
-100 basis points - 172 - 130
Attrition Rate +100 basis points - 228 - 1.53
-100 basis points 1.65 - 1.02 -
Morulity Rate +300 basis points - 190 - 122
-108 basis points .90 - 1.22 -

"The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on possible changes of the assumptions occurting at the end of the reporting period, while holding all othet sssamptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
present above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined oblgation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be co-related,

Risk facters in acruariak assumptions
Hterest rate tisk: The plan exposes the Company to the sisk of fall in otetest tatcs. A fall in interest rates will result in an increasc in the vhimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an
increase in the value of the linbiliry. :

Liquidity sisk: This Is the risk that the Company is nor able to meet the short term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/ cash equivalent to meet the Eabilides or holding of
illguid z2ssets nor being sold in tme.

Salaty escalation tlsk; The present value of the defined benefit plan is caleulated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan pardcipants in future, Deviation in the rate of incrense of salary in fotore
for plan participants from the rate of increase in salzty vse to determine the present value of chligation will have a beating on the plan's liabilicy.

Demographic fisk: The Company has uscd certain mortality and attrition assimption in valuetion of the Hability. The Company js exposed to the risk of acual experience ramning out to be worse compared
to the assumption.

Asaet Fability mismatching or macdees rigl: The duration of the Bability is longer compared to duration of assets, cxposing the Company to market risk for volatilities/ fall in jnterest ratc.
Investment tisk: The probability or Bkelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected remm on any particular investment.

The following payments are expected future cash flows to the defined benefit plan (undiscounted in fature years):

Year ended Year cnded
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Re. million
Year1 005 0.01
Year 2- 5 years 0.62 043
Year § - 10 years 0.95 0.66
More than 10 yeats 329 200

Regulatoty framewotk/ Govenance / benefits under the plan:

The gratuity benefit is 2 post cmployment benefit. Fr is calculated at the terminal salary (BasictVIDA) at the time of retirement/ resignation of the employee arcording to the provisions of Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. However, there is no restriction on the maximum amount of grarity payable, The plan assets are managed by Life Insurance Cosporation of India.

Under this policy, the eligible amployecs ase entitled to reccive gratuity payments upon their resignation or death in lumpsum after deduction of aecessary taxes. The fund managers do oot discose the
composition of their portfolio rvestment, accordingly break-down of plan assers by investment type has not been disclosed.

Asse lishility matching stratepies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is 4 cash accomuladion plan. Interest on the fund balances during the year is accutnulited at the interest rate declared by insurance company ar the end of
the financial year. Gratuity daims are settled by the insurance company out of the fund, thus mitigating any liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumnulation plan, the duation of assets is shotter compared
to the duration of the Nabilities, Thus, the Company is exposed to mavement in interest tatc.

Effect of plan on entity’s future cash flows

The company has purchased losurance policivs to provide for payment of graruity to the employees. The conttibution to che funds are made based on estimated shortfall in plan asscts from lisbilities.
Expected contribution during the next annual repordng period is Rs. 6.74 million {previous year - Rs.1.60 million). Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligadon based on weighted average duration is 10
Years.

The plan asscts axc managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Under this policy, the eligible cmployecs aze entitfed to recefve grawity payments upon their resignation or death in lnampsum after
deduction of necessary taxes, Estimate of the future salary increase is based on factors such as inflation, seniority, promotions, demand and supply in employment market.

s i ploradet et
- Re. milion Rs. milion
Present valoe of DBO 1.90 1.22
Employer's conuibusons u 041
Net Asser/ (fiability) 021 (0.81)

Defined contribution plar
The Company makes contributions for qualifying employees to Provident Fund and other defined contbution plans. During the year, the Company recognised Rs. 2.45 million (31 March 2022 : Rs. .15
million) towards defined contribution plans.
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38. Fair value measutement

1) The catrying value and fair value of inancial instruments by categoties as of 31 March 2024 are as under:

(Rs. millior)
Financial assets,/
Particulars (financial liahilities) at Total carrying value Total fzir value
fair value
Financial asseis/{financial Habilitics)
Investment in fuatual fund 31623 316.23 316.23
Derivatives instruments®
- Forward contracts {0.55) 0.55) (0.55}
‘Fotal 315.68 315.68 315.68
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2023 are as under:
(Rs. million)
Financial assets/
Particulars (financial liabilities) at ‘Total carrying value Total fair value
fair value
Financial aseets/ {(financial labilities)
Investment in mutual fund - - -
Derivatives instruments*®
- Forward contracts - . .
Total - - -

*Change in fair valve is recognised in other comprehensive income.

if} Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the foliowing hicrarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial insttuments by valuation techniques:
The following is the basis of categosising the financial instruments measured at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3.

Level 1 - This level includes financial assets that are measured by referenice to quoted prices (anadjusted) in active martkets for identical assets of lizbilities,

Level 2 — This level includes finaocial assets and Labilities, measured using inputs other than quoted ptices inciuded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset o
linbility, either dicectly f.c. as prices) ar indirectly (i.e. detived from prices).

Level 3 - This Jevel includes finandal assets and liabilities, measured wsing inputs that are not based on observable market duta (unobservable inputs). Fair values ate
determined in whole ot in part, using 2 valuation modef based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observzble current market transactions in the
same instrument not are they based on available market data.

Fzir value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31 March 2024:

{Rs. million)
Fair value measutement at end of the reporting perind/year using
Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets/ {liabilities)
Investment in mumal fund * 31623 - 31623 -
Detivatives instruments **

- Forward contracts (0.55) - {0.55) -
Total 315.68 - 315.68 -
Thete is no transfer between the fair value measurement hierarchy amongst level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year.

Rs. million)
Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period/year using
Particulars As at 31 March 2023
Tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets/ (liabilities)
Investment in mual fund * - - - -

Derivatives instruments %
- Forwatd contracts - - -

Total - - - -
There is no transfer between the fair value measurement hicrarchy smongst level 1, fevel 2 and level 3 during the year,

*The fair values ate based on net asset value

** The fair values are based on exchange rates as at the reporting date,
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ifi) Financial assets and financial Habilities that are measured at amortised cost ate ;

. Carrying amount

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
Financial assets
Secutity deposits 1.56 1.32
Interest accmed on bank deposit 075 0.62
‘T'rade receivables 19.86 1205
Cash and cash equivatents 17.35 9.74
Other bank balances 404.32 175.G0
Financiat labilities
Borrowings 41.00 58.53
Lease liabilides 28.67 29.87
Capital creditors 5.27 0.70
Trade payables 40,12 .64
Employee related payable 7.87 6.70
The caetying value of above financial zssets and financial liabilities approximate its fair value,

39. Capital management

The Company’s objective for managing capital is to ensuze as under:

i) Ensure the Company’s ability to contimue 35 a going concern

il} Maintain a strong credit rating and debt equity and czpital gearing ratio in order to suppost business and maximize the sharcholders’ value,
iif} Mzintain an optimal capital structure,

iv) Complianee of financial covenants under the borrowing facilitics.

The Company mazages its capizal stucture keeping in view of;
Q) Compliance of financial covenants under the borrowing facilities
iI) Changes in cconomic conditions

In order to achieve this overall objective of eapital management, amongst other things, the Company aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
borrowings facilities defining capital structure requirements, where breach i meeting the financial covenants may permit the lender to cali the borrowings.

Thete have been no breach in the financial covenants of any borowing facility in the cutrent period. There is no change i the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital over previous year.

For the putpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all othet equity rescrves artdbatable o the equity holders of the Cornpany and net
debt includes totat liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-hearing debts adjusted with available cash and bank balances
divided by total capital (equity attributable to owners of the Compaay).
The funding requirement of the company is primarily met through internal accraals, leading to a negative net debt position as under:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs, million Rs, miliion
i::‘:?i;ir;gs (refer note 16} (ncluding current 41.00 .53
Less: cash and bank balances {refer note 13) 421,67 184.74
Net debt (A) (380.67) (126.21)
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44. Financial tisk tnanagement
‘The Company’s principal financial Habilitics, other than detivatives, comptise of loans and bortowings, trade and other payables. The main putpose of these financial Eabilities is
to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets inclade trade and other recebvables, and cash and cash equivalents that it derives directly from its

operations. The Company also holds FVTPL current investments and enters into derivative transactions. .
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit fsk, price risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these tisks under appropriate

policies and procedures,

i) Market risk

Market risk Is the tisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuste because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
zisk interest rate risk, carrency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instraments affected by matket risk inclade borrowings, deposits,
FVTPL current investments and derivative financial instruments,

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales and purchases from overseas in forcign currencies mainly in USD, CNY and SGD. The Company holds
derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on fozeign cutrency exposures. The exchange rate
between the rapee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may flucruate substantially in the fature. Consequently, the resalts of the Company’s
operations may be adversely affected as the rupee appreciaces/ depreciates against these cutrencies.

Sensitivity
Each percentage point change in the foreign exchange rates has an impact on profit before interest and tax as follows:

Increase / (decrease)

As at 31 March As at 51 March
2024 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Exchange rate - increase in by 1% 0.64 (0.87)
0.64 0.87

Exchange rate - decrease by 1%

“The Company’s foreign cutrency risk from financial instruments are as under:

(Foreign currency million)
. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulats Currency
Total Hedged Net Total Hedged Net

Borrowings 5GD .99 0.99 - 1.41 - 1.41
Trade payables UsD 0.03 - 0.03 - - -
Advance to suppliers UsD 0.30 - 0.30 - - -
Capital advance ush 0.10 - 0.10 - . ;
CNY 319 - 3.19 - - -

b) Interest rate risk
Initerest rate risk is the tisk that the fair value or farure cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company has not any

exposure towards long term debts bearing interest and hence, the Company is not exposed to any interest rate sk,

if) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counteeparty will not meet its obligations under z financial instrument of castomer contract, leading to a fnanciaf oss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activides, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, forelgn cxchange
transactions and other financial instraments. Credit risk is managed by Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customet credit risk management.

Credit risk has slways been managed by the Company through ceedit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the eredit worthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms in the notmal course of business. The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss and makes an allowance

for doubtful debts using expected credit loss model on case to case basis.

Movement in the expected credit foss allowance of financial assets

{Bs. million)
Pardculats Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 0.14 -
Add: Provided durng the year 0.76 014
Balance at the end of the year 0,90 0.14

(This space bas been intentionally loft biunk)
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as follows:

Age bracket 0-180 days 180-365 days | More than 365 Total

days

As at 31 March 2024
Trade reccivable (gross) 18.55 0.12 2.09 20.76
Less: Allowance for expected foss (0.02) 0.01) 0.87) (0.90)
Trade teceivable (net) 18.53 0.1 122 19.86
Expected credit loss % (0.11%) {8.33%) (41.63%) (4.34%)
_As at 31 March 2023
‘Trade teceivable {gross) 9.55 250 0.14 12.19
Less: Allowance for expected loss - - 0.14 {0.14)
“Trade receivable (nex) 9.55 2.50 - 12.05
FExpected credit loss % - - (100.00%) {1.15%)

iif) Liquidity risk

"The Company’s objective is to maintain z balance between continuity of funding and flexibitiey through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loaas, Liquidity dsk is managed by
Compaty’s established policy and procedures made under liquidity risk management framework. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate teserves, banking
facilities, and reserve borrowing facilites,by continuously forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profile of financizl assets and Eabilides.

“The financial assets and lisbilities have been appropriately disclosed in finandial statements as cartent znd tion curreat portion, The matuity period of non current financial
assets and financial liabilities ranges between 1 to 6 years except lease Habilides where period may vary as per respective lease agreements.

As at 31 Masrch As at 31 Match
2024 2023
Rs, million Rs. million

On demand
- Borrowings - -
L.ess than1year
- Borrowings - -
-Trade payables 40.12 11.64
~Lease liabilities 1.50 1.21
-Other financial liabilities 11.42 4.45
More than 1 year
- Borrowings 41.00 58.53
-X.ease fiabilities 2717 28.67
-Qither financial liabilities 2.27 2.95

Details of undrawn facilities of the Company from hanks and financial institutions (fand based as well as aon fund based);

Total Committed working capital Jimits from Banks 49.50
Utilized working capital limit - -
Unutilized working cagital limit 49.50

iv) Commodity risk

Commodity price risk is the financial risk on the Company's profitability upon fluctnations in the prices of commodities since they are primarily driven by external market forces.
Sharp fluctuations in commodity prices can affect production costs, product pricing and earnings. This price volatility makes it imperative for an entity to manage the impact of
commuodity price fluctuations across its value chain to effectively manage its financial performance and profitability. To mitigate these sdsks, the company employs multiple
levers, cach chosen based on 4 cost benefit analysis and the extent of exposure to commodity price fuctuations, These include assessing the feasibility of passing any advesse
fluctuations ento customers through price increases, continuously engaging in cost optimisation initiatives and process improvement exercises. The Company also explores
optons such as localizing impors/ implementing global sourcing strategies to ensure most cost effective sourcing. Based on the assessment by the Company and after factoring
the ability to optimise costs and pass on prices to customers, no individual commodity is expected to have a significant adverse impact on the financial petformance/profitability
beyond its materiality threshold apptoved by the Board.

v) Other price risk

The Company has deployed its surplus funds into various financial inscruments including units of mutual fonds. The Company is exposed to NAVY (net asset value) ptice fisks
arising from investments in these fungs:FHESTtee of these investments is impacted by movements in interest rates, liguidity and credit quality of underlying securities.
ATI()@
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41. Hedge accounting

Forwards cootracts

The Company halds desivative finandial instruments such as forcign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the rsk of changes in exchange rates on foreign custency exposures.
The counter party for these contracts is generally 2 bank ot a finzodal institution. These derivative financial instruments are valned based on quoted prices for similar assets 2nd
liabilities in active markets ot inputs that are directly or inditectly observable in the marker place.

Details of forward foreign curcency contracts outstanding at the end of reporting period are as under:

(Foreign currency million)
Outstanding conteacts Currency As at:;zzlatch As atz.’rﬂlzg{arch
Maturing [ater than three month and not later than
one year SGD/INR 1.00 Q.00

The Company has designated forcign exchange forward contracts as cash flow hedges to misigate the sisk of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash
transzctions. The zelated hedge transactions for balance lying in cash flow hedging rescrve are expected to oocur and rechssified in the statement of profit or loss within 6

months,
Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship. To ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument,

the Company matches the critical terms of the hedged items and hedging instruments.

Reconciliation of cash flow hedge resetve are as under:

Rs million
Pasticulars As at 31 March | As at 31 Masch
2024 2023

Assets /(liability)
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Gain / {loss) cecognised in other comprehensive income during the

sear (©.55) -

‘Tax impact on above - -
Balance at the end of the year (0.55) -

42. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which these are any materal foresesable losses.

(This space has been intentionally Jeft blank)
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43. Addrtional regulatoty information

Variance
: . . Year ended Year ended o
Particulars Unit Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 "
Current ratio* Times |Total current assets - Total curreat Labilities 9.02 4.66 112.96%
Debt-Equity ratic** Ti i i ity
eht-Equity ratic’ imes |Debt consist of borrowings {Total Equity 004 0.19 76.91%)
Earnings for Debt secvice=  |Debt service = Interest and
Dbt service coverage ratio #* Times |Net proft after tax + lease payments+ Principal
iation 4+ i
depreciation + interest repayments (14 (L.9G) (30.83%)
Return on equity ratio®* %  |Profit for the year Averape total equity (9.01) (28.58) (68.49%)
Iaventory turnover ratio” Times |Cost of Goods sold Average inventory 1.50 3.69 (59.19%)
Tradc receivables turnover zatio” Times {Sakcs of products | Average trade receivables 7.95 11.54 (31.14%)
Cost of material + employee
Trade payzbles tumover ratio™ Times [benefit expense+ other Average teade payable
exXpenses 641 13.47 {52.45%%)
Average working capital (e
Net capital turnover ratio# Times |Sales of products Toeal current assets less Total
aurrent Labilities) 0.24 1.60 (84.70%)
Net profit zatio@ %  |Profit for the year Sales of products (45.23) (23.51) 92.36%
Retura on capital employed® o Profit before tax and finance |Capital employed = Net .
cost worth+Debt {4.91) (15.75) {68.86%%)
i Income generated from Average invested finds in
R . Y
eturn on investment, Yo invested fands [treasury investment 3.76 3.19 18.07%

* The variation is more than 25% over last year due to increase in financial assets in the current year.

** The vaciation is more than 25% over last year on account of fresh equity infusion.

*% The variation is more than 25% over last year on account of decrease in loss during the current year.

" The variation is more than 23% over last year on account of decrease in revenue/ cost of goods consumed in the current year.

# The variation is more than 25% over last year on account of increase of working capital and decrease in revenue during the curreat year.
(@ The variation is mote than 25% over last year on account decrease in revenue during the current year.

44. The Company has no transaction with corpanies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

45. The Board of directors, in its meeting of 30 January 2024, has approved to raise additional capital of Rs. 700.00 million by way of right issue to the existing
skareholders @ Rs. 127/- per share of face value of Rs. 10 each at premium of Rs. 117 each . The Shares shall rank pari passu in 2ll respects and carry the same
tights a5 the existing equity shares. EMF International Pte. Ltd. vide its letter dated 30 January 2024, renouced its fight to acquire 2,700,787 equity shares in
favour of SPR Engenious Limitcd (SEL). Subsequent to this, SEL subscribed the entise right issue of 5,511,811 shares and shares were issued on 1 Marchk 2024
accordingly.

46. No proecedings have been intiated or are pending against the Compaay for holding any benami propecty under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rufes made therennder.

47. There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with registrar of companies (ROC) beyond the stattory pesiod.

48. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

49. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) bas prescribed 2 new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts)
Raules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiting companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of
accouat, shall use only such accounting software which has 2 feature of recording audic trail of each and every transactions, creating an edic log of each change
made in the books of accouat along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit erail cannot be diszbled, The new requirement is
applicable with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023.

The Company has used Tally Prime Gold Release 4.0 as its accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a featare of recording audis wafl
(edit log) but the same was not enabled from 1 April 2023 to 9 February 2024. Subsequently, the Company has migrated to Tally Prime Edit Log 4.0 on 9
February 2024, which includes an audit traif (cdit fog) feature for recording all relevant transactions.

50. The Compaay does not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

51. Figures of previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with the figures of the current period. The impact of such
regrouping/ teclassification is not material to these financial statements.
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52. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediatics) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shalk:

a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or cntitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Uldrnare
Bene ficiarics) or

b) presvide any guarantee, security or the like 10 or on belialf of the Ultirnate Reneficiaries.

53. T'he Company has ot received any funds from any peesofi or entity, including foreign entides (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwisc) that the Company shall:

a) dircetly or indirectly kend or invest in other persons or entides identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{Ultirrate Beneficiarics) or

b) prexvide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

54. T'he Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority,

55. 1The Company has complied with the number of layers as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
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